I L
TNV T /

vy
G dits ;09 Jri/83
Claude T, lieade estions:
Rt. 5 0x 642 Michael Dowms (1M.D.)
Horehead, XY 40351 Dr. John Hinrahan (J,H.)

.':\1.5@ ol "I-ll-

t‘{. Ll D -
:'\n.i .
M o De

Ana,

J.H,

JIHI

Ans .,

JUH.

Ans.

JoHl

ns.

Je H-
ANS .

1.0,

ins.,
MaDa
\ns.
MeDe

\ns,

fhen You entersd the service wers you drafted or did you enlist?

I enlisted.

Why did you enlist?

For several reasons., My parents had moved from the coulfields of Kentucky to

the metropolitan area of Michigan. T was a freshman in hizh school when
that happened and its hard to live with chanzing that much in environment.
T dropped out of high shecool in Michigan., Natwrally T didn't have anything
to do, no skills. %o, T joined the service.

What year was that Claude?

1957

1957, 30 you were in the army long before tha Vietnam war?

Yes, T was in the army, well the first time T went to Vietnum was in May
of 1965, so T was a second term enlister when T went to Vietnam.

Wlhat rank werse you at that time?

The first time T was % = 6 and that's on a staff Seargant., Then my job w:s
assistant platoon seargent.to a door-gunner platoon, T volunteered then,
T was in Vietnam for over six months,

You volunteered to go to Vietnam?

+ The first time, yes. That was before the ground troops were committed in
Vietnam

And you were at the Ben Hoa air base at that time?
Right.

Jdhat was the last grade of school you completed hefors you went into the
service?

T completed tenth grade.
How large of a family do you come from?
T'm the younzest of sevan children.

Jo you belonz to a1 church?

Now
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No, T was in a zZun nlatoon 25 opvosed to a slick, you know, helicopters, w13
the troop helicopters were called slick helicopters. They only had two mechine
zuns on tham. The crew chief had a michine zun and the door-gunner had a
machine Zun. They carried troops, what we called gun ships which T was

with, now we didn't cirry any troops, we carried three machine Iuns on each
side. Sometimes we would have u grenade launcher, ind we were loaded down

30 much with ammunition we couldn't, ships weren't schooled enough to carry
troops. Jo, we would 2o out on missions, TIn your studies you nrobibly
remember the battle of Dong Xoail, we weren't thers initially, we were called
out ahout two o'clock in the morning to go there to Jong Hfoai to escort

some troopns who were zoing in, to relesive the people whe were there at that
special forces camp. e ended up being there about threse or four days.

You weren't there then, with 3ay an Arvin company or platoon, you really
were identified as a gunship crew as it were?

Right, we were American . . .
Yes, from the very begzining . . .

Right, T only related to the Americans, there was only Americains on my
helicopter., e would go ind support, as that one example T gave you, T
guess they were Arvin specisl forces, Je dropped them off in war zone
Charlie, which i3 T guess it's Worthwest toward Cambodia, Northwest of
5iazon, e dropped them oflf and we were supposed to pick them up, we were
suppossed to be orbiting the area to pick them up 2 week later, ifhen we
were there we never did hear anything from them. e would suplort in those
wiyse. e would support the civilians in 2 contingence of troops sometimes.
They'd come in the same area with the 173rd and the first diviaion.

They were there that early, 1965%
Yes.
T didn't know htat.

I don't know exactly when they came in, but they were there., \nd, we would
support them, de were ziving gir support to 211 ground forces, all friendly
zZround forces. Je were on eall 4ll the time. T cun relate it bto scme of the
movies T've seen on the second world wir, you know, ths nilots would come in
and the night hefore they'd be briefed on the mission of the next merning.

Ne slept between clean sheets every night. That was great in that rezard,
Fut, everyday we would see these, we'd ses the 173rd and first division Rig
Red One, they were down there sleeping in mud.

Were you opbtimistic in those early days about the outcome, did you have any
questions in your mind about victory?

dell yes, during both times T wa3 in Vietnam T don't think there w2s ever 2a
question of wvictory. Tt was Just the matter of when, when congress would
allow the military to g2t on with what needed to be done, T 3till feel that
had congress not druz their heels, had congress when they committed the troons
you know, I can't say that T feel we should have heen in Tietn.um, T cin't

say that at all,
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ell, we're 30ing to come back to that pirticulir question a little later,
but T was just tryinz to get some of your wviews 23 a young fellow in thare at
the bezinning. There was no question in your mind that you were serving 1
300d cause and you were confident the government was 3o0ing to back you un

and was Zolng to be victory come out of this snd you know, just fael, T think
you did share z zreat deal of the optimism that was there in the armed forces
in those early days. T don't think despair or whatever you want to call it
bezan to set in until much luter, long after you prebably were gzone from
there, In those early years, six months, whatever you cun recall ibout them,
wa3 there anything ibout the missions yon were on that would give us 2 zood
story? Tor example, things that had happened to you at the time, either a
narrow escape, or something about your buddies. How did it all remember in
your mind?

Well there are probably several things, but the thinzs that pop into my

mind most clearly when T think about it, you know, the things that happened

to me is . . . like we established, T'd been in the army for sometime before

T went to Vietnam and alwiys, a lot of that time before Vietnam T had heen in
a leadershin role, so 2lways anytime we were involved with live ammunition,
there was a safety factor that wus a2 tremendous thing, everybody w:s pushing
safety you know. And, T'd been in Vietnim 23 a door-gunner for probably two
and a half to three weeks before I had ever actually, I'd been on missions and
T had shot bridzes and T had shot houses and T had shot boats, shot at them,
and you could see the panelings and the wood and everything flying up. But

T had never actually seen another human being, until one day, the first human
being I saw, we were shooting at some boats, these boats were supposed to be
carrying VC guns, and we were shooting at the boats, they had a 1little hooch
like on one of the boats and two or three people got up and started running out
and immediately I swunz my machine zun in the opposite direction, bhecause T'd
1lways been taught anytime there's somebody, another human beinz in Front of
you, you don't shoot. And so my instinet reaction was to move the machine zun
away from what T was shooting at because T saw somebody there,

Most of the combat you 3aw was, or zll of it probably then w:is from a distance,
it was from the air?

At that time yes, my first time in Vietnam.

jere you in any combat later on?

T went back to Vietnam 2s an infantrymin with the 25th division.
Jhare were you then?

Plailu, then went to Asia.

#hat were your duties then?

Platoon 3eargent.,

This was at Plaiku?

it Plaiku, yes.
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Do you remember the atback, the fumous attzck on Pebruary the 7th 19657

I remember that, T wis home on "leave zstting ready to go to Hawali in February
when that sttack happened, T remember thit very definetly hesause T waz at
home on leave when that happened. T had been stationed at Fort 3enning,
Georgia and T was zettlng ready to go to the 25th division in Hawaii. And
that's where the first time T went to Vietnam, T went from Hawaili, when T laft
I came bick to $aweii, 25th division.

50, this second tour then wis from Decembzr 1955 to Jamuary 19572

I was with the 25th division, 2 Platoon 3earzent in the infantry platoon.
Now this was the ground wir then?

Right, that's when T learned to appreciate being in the air.

shat was a typlecal day like for you at that time?

A tyoleal day, well there were so many things when you first went thers.
There was a lot of foul-ups.

lere you on search and destroy at that time?

Yes, and il you remember the Ta Dsang Valley was there, when the first air
car went over there, they zot really chewed up., Tt was the Ta Dsang Valley
where they got chewed up, And we searched and destroyzd and searched and
destroyed the T2 Dsang Valley until T thought we were zoinz to walk it
completely out of existence. e would, neriodically get into some moderate
to heavy contact, the contuct was always breken excent on occasion we would be
able to pin the enemy down and keep them from breakinz contact. T think then
that the despair you were talking about would set in later. ile would go out
and lose a lot of troops in one, maybe one hit and we would stay there maybe
two days and leave, then come back in two weeks later and do the same thingz,

Thats what wis happening to You? Did you find that discourazing?
That part of it yes,very discourazing.

This was a wir with no front lines,‘juat chasing the enemy, most of your hattle
experience then was being sniped at.

No, well, as T said T was a Platoon 3eargent and T had several, as far a3
snipers, you hear people tall of different stories, I'm sure you're going to
hear people tell a thousand different stories when you get into this about
the way things happened in Vietnam, T didn't have any problems with

snipers, I'm not saying that snipers didn't shoot at us, snipers would

shoot at us 4 bubt T personally would . . . you know, a law is, you've been
in the service in the modern army, If 1 aniner fired at me when I was in the
bush, I would always have several law's near my point mun in my point s-quad
and if a sniper fired I would just fire a law in that direction and it would
either run him off or get him one of the two, T really didn't care. But my
mission was to zo from point A to point 3 and a sniper wausn't going to hold me
up, the way he did 2 lot of them.
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Jas a lot of your experience just slogzing through the rice paddies looking
for the VC?

Zither that or we had 2 pincer type operation. .e would be in sort of, they
would call them sazle flights. 'Je would send a filler out and it would hit
and we made conbact and at that time we wers bezinning to recognize 2 pattern
that the VC would make. They would make contict ind they would sucker 2
platoon in and 211 of us were ambushed by people bshind them. 3ut we 3set v
up this thing called eazle flights where rather than putting people in behind
them we would let the eazle flight drop people in hehind the enemy and try to
catch them at the same zame. Of course we did that quite a bit, once or twics
T think it worked real well, znd other times it was Just a waste of effort.
Then azain, T zuess T'd been in Tietnam the second time about six months

when they came up with an operation 3imilar to a dew=line., Pleiku i3 not

too far from Lios and Cambodii and one of the Hoochi minh triils, one of the
main outlets wis supposed to be right there in that area. My company or
batallion larger unit, we set up dew lines, what they call dew lines, take

the name from the old dew line, the old radzr in Canada, up in thers, And

we were supposed just Yo be eyes and ears for higher head quirters and we

were supposed to ivoid all contact. /e spent two weeks doing that ind that
was probably the most nerve racking experience, because we were supposed to
avoid contazt at all costs. ile were broken down into two ind three men at
outpost 2nd sometimes there'd be as much as 2000 meters betuween ua.

Do you think you were trained for these kind of tactics? DPrepared for it?

Yes, T think probably the 25th division and well getting bick to my experience
befora. T was wlith the second infantry division in Port 3enning Jeorgia when
the second infantry division wis broken up on a provisionzl basis to train for
the first air cair. 50 I was there 211 the time that they were traininz from
the second infantry division in the eleventh air issault nrovisional which
later became the first air car, they just changed colors. And T was there with
second infantry division and T was with the second infantry division from

1951 until February of 1955 when T was home on leave getbing ready to go to
Hawaii and T think that next month they changed over to the first air car and
went over to Vietnam themselves., 5o T think, yes T was trained, T'd been

on several counter-insurgency operations in the appalachianz and swamps of
Georziae. Then in Hiwall we did a lot of training in Jungles.

And at no time did you lose confidence that this kind of battlefield tactie
was 2oing to work out and the enemy would be defeated?

No, when I was there the second time I don't think T had time to think about
thit. ‘hen I wis there the second time T was 21 young platoon searzent, T was
real young to be a platoon seargent, and T was worried quite a bit about my
own capzbilities as far as being enough of a leader to handle, !'fhen T went
over T think T had fifty-three men at the time and you know T wis thinking,

2 lobt of this is on my shoulders and T was concerned about that quite a bit.
T didn't really give the other 2ll that much of an account, maybe T did when
I came back but at that time T didn't.

You said earlier th:t you didn't necessairly agree with us being over thers,
but did you have an idea in your mind as to why we were over there in the
first place?
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\ns, T wouldn't now, T didn't question it at thut time, Like T said, T was a
professional soldier and T think everybody looked at me a3 a professional
soldier, That aquestion never, T never dared even think aibout should we b2 hera,
My Job as a professionsl soldier wis to do what T was sent to do ind do what
T am supposed to do. %o, that to me, would be like askingz somebody thuts
3pying do you think you really ought to be doing that now.

J.E. How 1ibout the younz men that wers under your command did they share this certanit
that you had or this feelinz of duty.

\ns, Ye3s and no. I can see a lot, of course the drmft was probably about seventy-
five percent of the forces. T don't know if that wnis because they were
being drafted or they had been drafted or they didn't want anything to do with
the army 2t all, because T'd seen that in peace time too 2ven befors we went
in to Vietnam, T don't know if T saw a1 tremendous differsnce in that attitude
than from what T saw in peace time now don't get me worng, T think rizht now
that we would have a better army , T think imerica would be better off if we
had 2 draft because we'd zet a cross-section of the ‘mericin society :nd ¢
we wouldn't get vhatever, you know, the lower income,

J«H., How about this rotation in and out, what did you think of that? Here comes
4 fellow and he is put into your platoon 23 a total stranger.

Ans. T think the big thing, and T noticed it there at that, time, and T think my
men did too, of course T nsver forced it but T used to wonder about it, we
would have a platoon leader for maybe three months, then we would rotate it
back to flve to three and zet a new platoon leader and he'd be with us for
another three months. The officers never stayed out there long, but ninety-
five percent of the enlisted men if they were there and that was their MOS they
stayed there and there's a lot of things, but T think the army i3 suffering
from the same problems rizht nows Of course T'm s5till in the reserve, T
think the army is sufferinz from problems now that if we were to go to 3iizon
or Pleiku or some administration area you'd see neonle who wers back there
in those Jobs of checking in ping pong balls they wolld all have junzle
fatigues or junzle boots and the works, yet I had a hard time with my troovns
getting, T litterily had 2 man walk completely out of his boots, he had
regular boots and the soles were completely gone and we couldn't get him a pair
of boots.

v

J.He Well, I had heard or read many times, this is 2 chief criticism this rotating
in for i year and out, comparison with the graat sacrifice with the North
Vietnamese who sometimes wouldn't see their families for years and years and
vears. A mark of their dedication for what they were doing but for the
american soldier who knew they were Zoing to get out, that his muin
objective was personal survival, so that would cut down on his efficiency as
a soldier wouldn't you think?

An3s, T would think so.
J.H. Did you find that?

Ans. I don't know because at that time we were, that reilly wasn't a questionable
thing at that time because we were among the first, what wers we the third
ground unit to be committed to Vietnam, 2 Fflrst air car ind a 25th. The
173rd came over but that was only brigade. 30 we were the third division
and this all happened in less than a year. 30 there reszlly wasn't ,
all of the Pirst ground troops were still in Vietnam when we were thers,
30 w2 weren't into getting second and third turnover. T don't know if T
could say that was 2 problem or not., I'm sure it would be.
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You 3aid yon were a young plitoon sezrzent, what ibout your officers what 'Vlg
1ge group were they in? ‘lere they also fairly young?

The second time T went to Vietnam, I went over is 4 platoon 3earient, T
didn't have an officer sssigned to me, T had a compiny commander. the company
commander was from lest Point. T didn't look at him as beinz i younz officer
maybe that was becsuse T was so young., If I saw him now T would say for
erying out loud, you know, 3ut when you look at things from your context you
can't. At that time no, T didn't look them is beinz young. T looked at

them as being inexperiesnced, T know T had 2 deep conflict with one of those
out of about five officers that came in eventuz2lly. T only had 2 deep
conflict with one of them and that was because he was one of these s0 c2lled
jod's gift to the army., He'd just graduated from Louisanz 3tate University
ind ROTC, and he knew all the answers, 1\t that time I'd been in Vietnam about
five months and he and T didn't get along. He would c211 me, T zuess T was
bizg on military discipline and he would call me Meade in front of my troops |
and T didn't zo for thet, not because of him, it's just the idea you know, °
where there's life involved, you don't have any question of whether or not

I'm the leader,

I know it was my experience over there that our officers weren't any oldar
than we were ourselves. VNost Leiutenants and Captains were twenty-three or
twenty-four years old. Then they were in and out too.

Yes, T cun sse that and that wns probably rizht, ™ut like T 33id T was a
professional soldier and T'd been through all this, T'd been through 7th

Army NCO school, I'd been through all the NCO schools ind all. That wis one
thing that wis 3 high priority in teaching in the NCO schools T was in at that
time and one of the missions of the NCO was to help train junior officers so T
aceepted that you know. Now like T said, the company Commander, he was a

iest Pointer, T thought he was a zood man, he moved also, The next two or
three T didn't think 4 whole lot of. T learnsd to live with 2 lot of people.

There's been 2 lot on T.V, and the papers about the druz use over thers by
\merican soldiers. uid you see any of that durinz your tours?

I can honestly say, now people may disazree with me, but T cun honestly say,

to my knowledze that T never saw any drug use all the time T was in Vietnum.

I e:in 332y that, T know that T have been in nlaces wvhers druzs have baen used,
because you can smell it, but as far as seeing and knowing that somebody was

'using drugs T had no experience with that it all,

What about any type of riciil conflict or anything of that nature?

Only one time did T see anything that may have resembled a ricial dlsagreement
or racial revolt or whatever, any hesitancy to doing something. There
were three blick soldiers inwolved in it and later on, after T came bick, T
got to thinking that druzs may have been inwolved in that, druzs may have been
very well involved from what T've heard. "Sut T don't know for sure, They
refused to go on a mission onee and I think it wss very much out of character,
for one of them I know. Because one of them used to be in my »litoon and T
mzde him a buck 3eargent, helped promote him., 30 T know it was very much out

of charicter for him tod do something like thit, because he was an outstanding

man. Later on T understand that a lot of people were complaining about thut
platoon searzent, 2 lot of people had trouble with that platoon seargent so

T don't know, I say that maybe drugs had something to do with it, maybe they
didn't. T've thought about it several times., 3But onow getbing to, you were
talking about the movies and the books and everythinz that's the big complaint.
If T had 5 complaint about Vietnim T think that's it. 7Because T have yet to
see anything written or anything in movies or theater or television or inything
that had 2 positive appro.ch about Tietnam. And T'm not saying that Vietnam
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should be looked on 2s a positive approach, but thers were thousands and
thousands of younzg American men in Vietnum who were positive and z00d

quility people., And it bothers me when T see these movies ind everything

that i3 written, it is written from the nezaitive aspect. And I cin take

you places right here in Morshead now and you can zet all the wir stories

you want and some of them are how T would siy fabricated and some of them

may have something to them, you know how thait goes. But I think our media

and our society listens to the fabricated ones s lot quicker than they will the
truth. Zaplezlly the things of Vietnam. That bothers me, it really bothsrs
me.

¥.De There's one theory that the wir was fought by the blicks and the poor, did
you find thut to be the casze?

ins. Je had 2 lot of blacks. T never did know I was noor until ufterwards,
MeDe  Until somebody told you when you got buck you were poor.

J.Hs I think in general what Michael is asking i3 this question that comes up
once in awhile of this behavior of white and blick scldiers with each other.
You apparently found little or no cause of Friction or contact differences?

ins. Not a lot.
J.H, DNot a lot, not beyond the normal?

Ans, liell T would say even less than you would see here, T seen, hers azain you've
20t to take everything from when I was in Vietnam and the people T wis assoclatic
with, e had a senior 2id there who was an E=5 and black, blick 25 the ace of
spade, he was as blick 23 he could bes And I've seen that guy set down and
cry bzcause he couldn't do something more. ind it didn't make any difference
whether he was blick or vhite or whaitever, he wa3s 2 human beinz ind T seen
that guy set down and cry becizuse he couldn't do anything mors. You know
I think you should have no favortism at 2ll, and T think if thers had 2 been

he wis in a prime position to show favortism,

J.H. 50 T think what you're saying is instead of conflict you found a2 lot more
cooperation and willingness to work together, realyizing you were in it
together and kind of the humin 3ilde of people came out rather than the racial.

An3. Yes. T think 3o0.

J.H., T don't know whether or not Mike wants to turn at this time to the question
of the dealings with the South Vietnumes=s.

M.,D. Zid you have much contzact with the Vietnaimese themselves?

Ains. TIn the zeneral population? ije had contact. The most direct contact thut we
had, the first time T was there we had no direct contact, the second time T
was there the most dirsct contuict was, we might go into 1 llountain or 1
village or 30 into + Vietnamese camp or we were out on a mission and these
run from being pleasant contucts to umplezsint contacts, extremely umpleasant
depending on the situation. T know sometimes we would have, T know this one
time we had what they called a Mountain Yird scout with us and hs was supposed
to be helping us with our location or talking to people. e also had a
Tietnamese ammy interprster, some wuy or other this scout wis supposed to be
able to speck the mountuin yard linguige and in turn tell the Vietnimese
interprater and the Vietnamese interpreter was supposed to cuestion.
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Here aziin 13 one of the stories, well T found in the bezinning, T believe W
Lisutenant Cilley was guilty, ok, but I found in the bezinning, T found it
hard to believe he was zuilty becuuse of the story I,m about to tell you.

I was a platoon leader and like I s5aid T was professional, T knew my job

and we moved into this village and we sezregated the women and the men, then
we sezragated the old men from the young men and this guy started cquestioning
and he would pull pecple out vho he thought were questionable and there wms
about two or three that were questionable. ifell, this Vietnamese was golng
to pistol whip one of them ind matter of fzct he hit him 3 couple of times,
and T stopped him, I feel it was my duty and nowhere had I ever, T'd heen

in the ammy 1 lonz time and nowhers been taught to mal treat civilians, even
if they were proven enemy, you know, take them under custody and arrest them,
or whatever, move them to the rear. At first T thought this thing with .
Lieutenant Cuilley hid zone out of proportion, but later on T found therz was
toc much of it. T found it hard to believe that that could happen in
American military,

ibout the Arvin troops themselves, do you have any opinion 23 to their
effectiveness or their . . .

Ineffectiveness?
Tneffactiveness.

I think they had, well here 2zain we have to realyize the context of where
they're coming from, this has been ilong in their lifetime, ever since I

cin remember there's been some kind of war 20inz on in that country and T
think most of them would Pfight like hell to ksep the enemy out or thelr little
hamlet or whatever, you know. But other than that they could do what they wint
to. They would he really furious fighters when thsy wers considerad threatened
that they themselves conaidered it their home lind, well not thesir homeland /
but their home territory was threatened. 3But other than that thsy were very
poor soldiers. I would rather have one \mericin with me than fifteen of them.
That was my experience with them.

What about the Peasants? Jo you really think it made any difference to them
that we were over there, did they care?

T don't know. T know we used to, before we would go into in urea there would
be leaflets drooped by imerican troops or somethinz. T don't know what they

32id. Je vere moving into in area where nobody would be harmed. Half of them .

were drunk, Hilf of them were either collaberiting with the enemy or half of
them were scared of us. T don't know what it was, they were just scared of us.,

Whom are you talking about now?

The Peasants, when we were Zoing to an area, thers would be heliconters coming
over there, belors we were Zoing there maybe American troops came in and very
seldom would you find that they would run, but like T said they were either
afr:id of us or collaberating with the ensmy.

Did you have a certain tenslon about them, to the point that you couldn't
tell a friend from 4n enemy?
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Ans, Oh no, T expected it, e were taught to expect thut and when we went over oV

we knew that was the way it was going to be. The only thing I remember,

when we 2ot in contact around 3:rdmethuot which is south of ®leiku. Thers

was a big operation, T believe that was the capitol of Vietnam and we cupturad
this muy, that T still to this day Peel that he was, of courss we had no ides
we were just evicuating the villige. 3ut that zuy held himself in a mannar

that he had to be an officer, ind T felt that he was probubly an officer from
the Chinese army because he was a tull guy, 2 real big zuy for a Vietnimese.
‘nd the way he would observe things that were zoing on, i Peasant doesn't observe
things thit way. T don't know what ever happened to him. That wis early in
1966 when thit hanpened.

M.Ds Jere you aware while you were there that sentiment at home wis chanzing?

ns. No, not really. T was very aware of the fact that T didn't get, T started
off zetting letters just about every day from the family, ind T didn't get
many letbters and T was aware of that, Of course T didn't connect that with
what was happening or zoing on but thats probably what was happeningz,

M.Ds  You said earlier that, you kind of 3aid, that we weren't allowed to fight the
war over there. +hat was your impression of the administration at that time?

\ns, Civilian or Vilitary?
MeDe  Clvilian administration, President Johnson?

Ans. T had nothing, I don't thing that lJestmorelind was a zreat General, T thinlk

that he wus an adequate General, but I felt then, and T feel now that the
imerican people, that we as a4 Nation have ot a lot to learn, beciuse when

ve commit our military we have trained that General or those Ienerals, hopefully
to conduct our warfire the way we wint to conduct it. 1ind when we have peonle
setting back, like Johnson and 2ll of these Senitors and representatives, who

in all T can hear of them, have never been in the service and if they had been
in the service they would probably have been -quartermaster officers. Setbing
back and making strategic decisions on what should be done in Tietnam, now
that, and T understand, T know historicazlly how our govermment is set up, that -
the military is supposed to listen to the cilvilian, but cnce that military is
committed you've zot to let it go. That's the way T feel about it. Tf the
Military is zoing to be committed then its got to be committed with what it's
capable of doing.

Jedse D[id you sense that in the contact between the civilians =and the military in
this way that the irmy leaders would get frustrated hecause they wers not
sllowed to go ahead and use 3ll thelr power and win this war? ‘nd they
didn't understand Johnsons reasons for restraint. His fear 2bout taking the

war up to the Chinese border , hls worry about the possibility of even the
Joviet Unlon gebtting into this war and the reluctance to take the ground war
into North Vietnim., Most of these were political reasons weren't they?
Which kind of inhibited his decisions.

ins. T think so. T think those decisions were supposed to be made hefore the
ground troons were committed,
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There was a failure then, of these clear cut objectives bhefore the involve-
ment took nlice, The military didn't understind this perhapgs, at least the
soldiers did not understand this. You were [ighting kind of a1 limlted wair.

Is that really our soldiers responsibility to understand, if that is tuken
care of that suestion will never be raised to soldiers, should he understand,

does he understand. If that question is without question they know it's taken
care of, That wis never questioned in the second world wur because those
questions hud been answered before they were committed,

There was very little doubt in world war IT of what was the reason for fighting,
but there was plenty of doubt in the minds of many soldiers as time went on
about the reason for fightinz in Tistnim, Is5 that what you're zetting at?

Yes, T think only bacause of the way it was handled politically. Had thosa
declsions been made, had the decision been made that either we commit ourselves
in North Vietnam and possibly if necessary in Tndo-Chin: then « + + + &

Did you have any of thut sense feeling at the time you were in Vietnum or i
this something that comes to you liter on when you look back at it?

T don't know. T thin maybe some of it was there, it's hard to say when,
Over a period of years I guess. T think those decisions should have been
mxde either we commit our troops with full backing, full assurince that Vv
they are 3Zoing to be supported.

In a way then the decisions should have committed Americun forezs in the Pirst
place.

That's what T'm saying, that should have been done before then, if necessary
we will commit them to Viebtnam and if necessary, Uthat decision should have
been committed right there, ind if necessary we will commit them to North
Vietnam. T think the first real big thing when I read that Melumar:, was

it McNamara that had this idez to build a2 fence 211 the way around South
Vietnum, was that his scheme? To huild some kind of fence all the wuy around
South Vietnim, well th:t's stupid.

You've already touched on this to some dezrsze, but why did we loze in Vietnum
if you think we did lose?

T think we lost. T don't think the \merican soldier lost. T think in Vietnam

we probably [islded the best trained, the best equipment and the most
intelligent soldiers that America ind probably history has ever sean. ‘hy
have 2ll that, most intelligent, best equipment, why have it all if you can't
use it? Jhy now do we want an army if we're not soing to use it? TP it's
needed to be used, hy do you want to commit it if it's not needed and =211,
it gzoes back to the same thing., As far as, well, T feel that if an iAmericun
soldizr in Vietnim did his Job as much or more than in imerican soldier did it
in the second world war, first world wer,

Jhat you're 3saying is it's really a mistake to go if we weren't going over
there wlith an objective in mind to let the military zo 2bout thelr buainess
we shouldn't have Zone in the first place.

Tn hindsizht, retrospect.
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Jede (Claude, do you put any blime on the military 1taelf? T've read iny number of
cages, even by military men that have written on the war thit we wers more
influencad by the w:iy we Lought the South, the Korean wir, kind of front lines,
thet tyne ware. Je had in the Keresn war 11lies that we wers confident of
the South Foreans, we knew where their loy2lty stood :nd 21l of that., 'nd

our Generals in the Vietnum war not recognizing that there were different
clrcumatanees in which this wir was beinzg fought didn't adapt their stratzies
and. their tactics to this war. Thls idea of search and destroy for esiample,
comes in for a lot of hezvy eriticism thot we were fizhting the wir in the
wronz w:y. UOld you have zny feelings on thit or in other words it's one thing
to blame the political znd civilian leaders which a lot of people have done,

ut there's too this criticism of the Jeneralship of the war even by Jenerils.
Jo you share some of that? .,

\ns. Yes, I think T shars some of it, not as totally probablly as what you're
gatting at. T share the fact, the idea that thers had never been i war styled
anywhere near the style of the war Vietnaim was since the American Indian wars.

Yes, T think that's probably true we had never trained for it, we're not

trained for it now and thats the problem, well ifter the fact, in Trin we
tried to rescue those people now after the fact they came up with rapid

development. courses you know, probablly we would never have had anothsr need for
1 rapid development course but now, supposedly we've 2ot something that could
rescue people from Truin., I think that's the same thing . . . there's no
question that guerilla tactics are something that the Americin Army, the
imerican military is Jjust not designed to handle, T think you could probably
more effectively combat guerilla tacties by you and T zoing out here in

lforehead or Iastern Kentucky or somewhere and zetting i platoon of men to go
fight guerillas,

J.H, \re you saying that the military couldn't have prepired?

inse No, no I'm not 3aying that they couldn't have, but T'm sa2ying under our desizn
of our military, the wsy it's being structursd it's gone from . . . now they're
Zoing to something else. T don't think any of thesz orzanizitions, the wiy
it's zoing now, it doesn't . . .

JJHs  The impression you have is that the American soldier is chasing all around
after these fellows trying to cabch up with the VC ind the North Vietnamess
and terribly frustrated. 3Some cases you'd read stories where they'd wilk

and walk and walk for weeks without seeing 4 soul. 3logzing along, search and
destroy and there was a while thers when the averaze number of TG killed in a
day was aboult one soldier.

ns, T think when T first went to Vietnum that it was estimated that for every 70
that was killed it cost the imericuns 2 million dollars, for esveryone that
waz killed.

JeH. e were Zetting 2 dollars worth for svery ten dollars we spent. T heard
that, it's a little bit lower than yours but probubly the same idea behind it,
that thers was a lot of waste,
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There was no quastion. As far as the type, it's jJust what you're tulking
about, T 33y it was the structure of the Vietnimese., Tt's the structurs of

the military. The first time T was there we had, the M60O michine un w3
Lssued to the hunds of the troops in 1953, That machine mn wis a relatively
new maizhine zun when T went to Vietnam and it had never been combat tested,
There w23 a2 1ittle washse, T forgst what they called it, it looked like g
washer behind of that ¥A0 machine zun. That wisher would 2ot 2
crack in it and it would quit firing or fire one at-a time and we couldn't get
bhe washer, it probably cost two or three cents, we couldn't requisition those
washers, tut we could requisition machine funs, :nd we'd zet them by the box
car3d, 50 i3 a result we had C? tents 23 big a3 this room and continuition of
C? tents full of 150 machine zuns and the only thinz wrong was that little 7
washer which we couldn't get and when that happened we Just quit even trying

to ordsr that washer and the machine zun.

Ude've had so mich stories in the last interviews.

In one of the earlier interviews he saild spire parts was the problem and
defective equipment w23 one of the problems too. He mentioned the ¥14's,
he said they got 1100 delective M16's,

Yow that vas in the Karine corp, right?
Tes.

T don't take opposition to thut one way or the other but the V16 was 1 very,
very sansitive weapon. The \merican militairy hid been used to the M1 iund the
M1lhe The 111 and M14 you could throw it down in a mud hole, leave it for a1 week
and pick it wp and fire it. The M16 has to be cleaned almost hourly in that
kind of environment, And T feel that that may have had something to do with
it, I'm not saylng they weren't defective, my experience with them, T think ,

that miy have been it.

But our soldiers, why would the military issue 2 weapon like that in 2n
environment like that, there's no way in the world you're going to keen
that thing clean,

One better than that, we went over on a boit and landed at Camrahn 3ay,
dhen I was in the first division. e zot on the boat with M16'3 and 114
ammnition. Now we'rz on the boat, during ocur move over it took about

" twenty-eight or twenty-nine days to get to Camrihn bay, and in the boit

w2 were reissued M156's they took our 1714's and zave us N16's and we still had
our Ml4 ammunition. e goh on a truck it Camrahn 3ay and sonvoysd Crom Camrihn
iy all the way to Pleiku with M16 rifles and M14 ammnition. Now I don't
know what would have happened 1f we had been hit,

That's =z goed story.
7id we learn anything from that experience over there?

No, well natrually we learned something but T don't think we learned the

right things. I don't think we learned, getting back to the officers for 2
minute, you were talking about the way they were trained were we really . . .
I think most of the officers, they had more at stake than T did. T told you
at the bezinning that T wolunteered to go to Vietnam the first time, becauss it
had 2 definite effz2ct on my advancement in my carser, my chosen career, And

T wis i young man, T didn't have as much invested in the army 15 the officers.



Jhen you gt up to be Colonel, Lisutentint Colonel, ™ill Zolonel and
3rigadier enerzls in the \rmy you have a hzll of 2 lot invested of your
1ife, monsy, and everything else in the military. Aind T cain 3ee where, :nd
T don't think this h:is changed at ill in the military, T cin see whers you hive
2 tremendous amount of yes men. This congressman wants this on paner that on
DaDeTs T'1) zive it to him in triplicate., T beliewe like Colonel ‘nthony
Aerbert. He wa3s quite an officer, h= wis the most decorited men in ¥ores,

M.D. He w2s 2 Colonel wasn't he?

ins, H2 was a Colonel. They kicked him out of the army :fter ?ietnim, well, it 7
may have been during Vietnam, 3esause he wouldn't play, he called them
paper machie ienreals and I izree with him, our army has not learned anythinz.
OQur irmy has not learned that you don't fight 3 war with paner you fight it
with well trained men. And trained, if possible for the kind of war we're
soing to be involwved in.

M.De Setting back to what you were talking about a while a3zn shout our military
structurs, Je're Zeared to 1 nuclezr strategy now and maybe we can't fight
1 conventionil tyne war, even though the zuerilla war i3 not 2 conventional
type war.

ins. No, I think 21l our thinking i3 zeared to 1 nuclear strategzy, but T think 211
our training i35 zeared to : conventionil type war. ind T think thats the
problem. T think thats what would huapoen in tha next war, T think it will

be 2 nuclear war. Right now, like T said I'm still in the reserve, we had the
very, very minimum training as far is nuclear iction, miclear capibilities,
anything like that, T 2o to Fort ¥nox every yeir ind work down there with
trainees, T um a tester and you're inwolved with testing young officers and
neople who were bsing trained to be tankers and thers i3 one phase of it, two
nhases, they have to put on a protecttvp mask in nine seconds a2nd they have to,
show »rofiecency in ﬂrew\ring tank before a nuclear attick. That's the
only thing they have to do now, and T feel that if we 320t in any kind of
nuzleir conflict there wouldn't be, if you read on what the Russian soldiers
do far a3 the way they train for muclear environment, they're so far above us
it's pitiful. But now, like T said our Jenerals and hizh ranking officers who
ire mapping this stratezy out, they get some ideas that these powers that are
want this kind of training done and that's the kind of thing their going to do
whethar it means anything or not.

M.D. Are we making the same mistakes today in Lebznon and T1 3alvador?

ins. T don't think so0 in Lebanon because T think the world eye is too fixed on

that part of the world, I think maybe Tl 3alwvador. Tf T wers asked the nuestion

how T feel if we were able to get involved actuilly with Zround troops again,

with our ovm ground troons in combat, T think somewhere out there in South
\merica but I don't think in Lebanon, I don't think we'll have a war there,
we hive Murines over there,ws:may have two or three Mirines killed or it may
chinge to the army. Now we'll have troops there and it may change and T

think 111 that time you'll have one or two killed every week or so. T don't
doubt that but T don't think we'll have a heavy contigzent of troops unless

it's a nuclear conflict and thats what I'm saying, if we zet into nuclear
conflict, we will win it because of our missile superiority rather than our
troops.
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feDs  hen You came back home did you need any kind of medical treatment?

\ns. Yes, when T First got back T went to : Doctor while T was on leave for lasch
bites that had zotten infected. They cleared me, T thought T wss 2 big zuy
you know. 4And he zave me some salve. T was still in the srmy, T was in
until May I came back in Jinuary and T was in until May of that same year.
ind everybody that wis in the unlt T was in the Cirst time T was there had
Jotten this. They called it Jock itch, fungus. T had to get trzatments for
thet, well Doctor Surchett is the one who gave me some medicine to elear it
un about six months azo.

J.He Tt stayed with you that long?
ins. Yea.
M.D. You got out in 1957. .hy did you zet out?

\ns. Tor several reasons. T was considersd a career soldier and ever since, the
army came out in 1959 with this thing they call pro piy. Pro piy wais
every year I was an infantryman durinz the month of November and they chanze,
For every MO3 the months were different for every MOS but for an infintryman
every year in the month of November you'd take a test that was zeared for
your rank aind your MO3 and the top third scores, peonle who szored in the highest
third 211 over the world in the United States army receives fifty dollars a
month extra, they call that pro pay. ZEfficeincy pay is what it wrs. And when
T was in Tietnum T didn't take the test beciuse the test vasn't offered, now
this is one reason, there's a whole bunch of reasons, but this is one thing
that stands out. When T cume back to Fort Dix, New Jersey T didn't get my
Pirst pay dey, T didn't get my pay, und T went te finance and I 3aid my Pro”
pay 13 not on hers and they said you wersn't supposed to get nropiy. I sald
well T've besn drawing it ever since it came out :nd they said well you didn't
take the test. lell, when T went to Vietnaum the test wis ziven in November,
that was the only time possible to take that test hecause they're afriid some -
body might compromise the test hut they had chanzed the rezulitions by the time
T was in Vietnam ind said that everybody was responsible for taldnz the test
23 they got back to the states., ijell T didn't know that so T didn't zet my
2ro-nay. that's one thing. Another thing i3 T was an 7 at that time T got
promoted I went to Tietnaum a3 an B6, T got promoted to 7 in Vietnim and they
had what they call i dream shoot Z7's , E8's and T9's could request their next
auty issiznment and probably get one of the three of their first three cholces.
" 30, T went up to personel and zave them my first three choices, T was single at
the time and T wanted to Zo back to Germany. 30 Germany was my first choice, V
Fort 3enning was my second choice and Fort Knox wis my third choice. T didn't
mention Tort Diz at all. T had a friend that was the same VO3 as me and the
only differsence was he was married and T was single, he had two kids. He gob
orders to gzo to Germany, T got orders to go to Fort Dix. We 52id well no big
problem, you know, we cin change that because the M03, the peonle where we're
3oing, thsy don't know which one they just the MO3 and the rank., e were both
the same rank, the same numbers, w2 said we can change that. ‘'le went up to
Personnel to get it changed and there was some specialist up there said no that
can't ba changed, no wey we can chanze it., That's another reason, it's a
smz)1l thing, but it's a conbributing Lictor. Aind T think maybe the attitude
of my Lamily may h.ive been another reason. Not the Zeneral public didn't
influence me T don't think, but the attitude of my family and they were being
incluenced by the zeneral publie,
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You had a little hit of time from when you came b.ck from Vietn.m until you
got out of the army, ibout five months, how did others trezt you? This may
be what you're talking about, your families . . .

Family y26, T had no reall dealings with anybody in the civilian community
even when T came back at Fort Dix T was NCOIC of the pitrolling commithtee and
we were teaching the boys that were 3zoing to Vietnam patrolling princinsle,
And everybody that wis working for me, T was a senlor !NCO ind everybody that
was working for me thers zat that time had been in Tietnum ind we didn't really
discuss those thingzs,

Jhat about after you bacime 2 eivilian aind people found out you were a Vietn:m
Teteran, did they treast you any differsnt?

I wis discourajed on severzl differsnt occasions, espicully when T first cume
hack bec:sue T had intentions you know, at th:t time T had almost ten ymars in
the service and T knew that if T didn't stay in the military in some form or
fashion that I wouldn't get any benefit at all for those ten years so T wanted
to stay in reserve. Of course the draft was hot snd heavy it that time, aind
peopls in the reserve unit, the people in the reserve unit probably felt
threatened by me. Because I was an 37 =nd here they had 2 biz lonz wiiting
1list of people who were trying to stay home and off of active duty by stayinz
in the reserve. 5o they just didn't want me, they'd tell me no we just don't
ne2d you and T finally, it took me five years to get in the reserve., T got

a fiva yazar break with the reserves because of that. Then T was diszusted /
about that., 43 far 13 the, after T gradunted with my under zraduate degree

I felt, T still feel very strongly about this, thit people who are in postions
of authority in many of our companies, industries, government positions,

many, many of these people have never been in the service, ind I think to :
large extent they ire, they solely, they ire qualified for that position solely
because they went to college in order to stay out of the service. ‘'that I'm
saying i3, T wonder if there hadn't been i Vietnim if this individual, now he
was a qualified man to be in that job, but T wonder would he hzve taken the

time to qualify himself to be in that position had there been m~ Vietnam or wouls
he have been out here putting washers on.

In your service, in other words, you lost kind of a competitive edies to these
people?

T think s0.

Not. only, even in your story about tryinz to get into the reserves, that wns
2 handicap more than a help wasn't it?

OH 3'83 .

ind then, when you looked at neopke who had heen either been able to escape
active duty by zoing in the reserve or they were able to maneuver so that
they could evade the dralt altogether and here they ire now in nositions ,
stronz positions, aind hers you're stunding at the bottom of the ladder, and
thit bothers you.

iell, it bothers be quite = bit, and like T said, T feel vary strongly about
that right now,
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jeems like you lost a lot of time? v
Yes, ten years, now T did eventuilly get in the reserves, so I do hawve thit.
How about general hostility, you hear i1 lot of these stories about Weteruns
returning, how about the attitude of the public generslly when they lknew
that you were 2 veteran, did you sense any hoatility?
Yes and no. T've been in situations where people would matter of factly offer

me marijuana, you know and T'd say you're talking to the wrong person and
they'd seem to think hey this guy's been in Vietnam, whzther they know it from

Pirst hand or Just what they see on television.

They put the two tozether ?

Yes, that's wvhy T resent this attitude, this stuff you see on television, I
have yet to see a Vietnim Veteran on = television progrim who was a straight,
3quired sway individual. They've alwuiys ot some kind of quirk about their
personality or a dope head.

You don't see it on T.V. the only ones that mike T,7. ire the homocidal maniac
or the dope addict.

You've already kind of indicated that you had some disappointments after
Zetting out of the service., Jid you think that the zovernment ind that neople
generally did not recognize the contribution of ths veterans of Vistnam,

Mayoe they even blamed loss of the wir on you guys, 13 thut the wuy you felt
about it?

42ll, T don't know, maybe. T don't know if it was that strong that they felt T
19st the war, T felt, well T used to have a little cartoon in my briefcase,
where this Juy, 1 veteran on crutches with one lez amputated is knocking

on veterans doors, this biz ole fat guy comes to the door and says the

front doors for veterans you go around to the back and I think this was rezlly,,
it's not trus as much now, but for quite some time the Vietnim weterin wns
lookad on as not being a veteran of the war, he's a veteran of something, but
not 2 war.

I never heard it put quite that way before.

The second world war for example, the T 7ill in the second world war zave the

veteran ninety dollars plus pald his tuition and bocks, rizht? j|hen T first
enrolled 23 a single 3T, T was getting 120 dollars, T had to pay for my books,
T had to pay for my tuition and plus this is twenty yesars since, twenty years

-

difference. You tell me what kind of . . it 3eems like thelr trying to give

us some kind of token, here we'll shut you up and mayba you won't say too much.
MNow eventually it did incresse, but this was in 1947 when T first went over thers
dhen did it increase, do you reqall?

Seems to me it wes in 1962 or 1969. Tt increased little by little,

Tt's going up every year.

‘nd eventuilly it zot to bs whers it was pretty good.
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M«De T 2ot out in 1974, out of college, T started in 197), and zot out in 1377.
And when T zot out it w23 up to over 400 dollirs 1 month, you know that's
for 2 wife and two kids,

ins, Yes3, . wife and two kids. MNow, you might asy thuts a little bit competiable
but when you compure it t6 ninety dollirs plus full tuition «nd books that
miy not bas +

iTeDs Jell you know, like you say I was p2ying tuition and T was working full time,
if T wisn' working full time T couldn't have made it.

Ans, T had 1 Job working 2 workship, plus T had a handymin's Job.
MeDe Jhat about the draft orders the ones that went to Canada?

ins, T don't really, how do T feel zbout it? I'm very mixed because the ones that
went to Canadn ire the ones who zdmitted they were draft dodzers.

MeDe There's a difference between them and the ones who hid in schools
n3. Ald in school. Hid doing that and of course there were other ways you know.
MeDe  hat 2bout the amnesty orozram?

ns« T wus opposed to that, ™ubt T cun see why it w2s done. T think T cin under-
stand why it w2s dons. ut T was onposed to it.

M.D. jell, what you're 3aying i3 the ones who went to Canada, they idmitted they
were draft dodgers, but they should have heen willing to take the consequences
1130+ Jetting back to this recognition thing thit Dr, Hinrzhin tilked 2bout
avhile ago, 2 lot of Vietnam veterans say that they wanted a naride and things
of this sort. You never felt like that?

ins. Oh no, I didn't., 3ut T did feel some kind of, like T suid T cume back in
1957 and T Peel rizht now if we have a Zroup of people who we can say are,
in quotes, they are hero's of Vietnam, T think it would be the people who
were captured. 3ut then again, I was taught, and it wes instilled and it
was drilled in me, the code of eonduct, I'll never be cupturzd of my own
free will., 30, really when you get right down to it those are the ones who
were not doing their jobs and they 2nd up beinz our hero's, sc T think it's
1 dilemma,

MoDe  Well I think one thing that brouzht this out, espically is far 43 pirides and
racognition was when the Tranian hostazes wers raleased end there w2s 30 much
hulabaloo made over them. That reslly .ntigonized the Vietnam vebterins T
believe,

Jede You didn't zet any free baseball pass.
2id you talk at all ibout his education?

Mede I hiven't yet. Jid you start collegs a3 soon i3 you got oub of the military?
ins, I 3ot out in May, «nd T enrollad in 3sptember,

J.H, In september of 12572

\n3. Septembar of 1757, ind in the interim T did severil differant jobs, three,

Jedsa 129 that hare in lorehead:

\ns. Yes. /
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Jhat was your major when you started back here?
Socilal Sciences, no when I started back here my major was political sciances
ind T ran into Jr. Huang ind so T changad my major to, it that time the
quickest way T could 20 ibout it was shange my major to social sclences
without losing anythinzg, so T chanzad my m2jor to soctil sciences.

de put me in the army too., He sure did. You graduated when then from
Morshead?

1959. It took me, Jamuary, well T didn't griduate, but that's when T finished
my underiraduate dezree.

You went. on for further educzation here?

Yes T did I got my masters hera,

dhat yeur was that?

197%.
yhat is it in?

tdult educaticn ind emphasis in medi., Tnstructional mediu,

lhat about when you came back to college here, what was the attitude like here
on campus toward the war? ‘ny demonstration: or amything of that sort?

Morehead 15 sort of l.yed back, it's always been. There may hive been some
resentment, T'm sure thers was resentment, but it wasn't voiced very strongly.
I heard a member of the ROTC, were you hers vhen ROTS first came here?

Yes T cume in 1969.

Thers was some vocal resentment to that, not : lot. And as directed toward
me a3 an individual, T don't recall anybody ever saylng anything. Of course
here azain, we were bezinningz to get 2 few veterans on campus and we were
in the process of forminzg a veterans club. e had a pretty gzood organizition
coming along. But T understand it fell apart later on. But at one time it
"wis 2 pretty respected orzanization. Just ahout everybody in it was Vietnum
veterans. 3o we assoclated with each other, we didn't really associzte 3 lot
with other zroups,

T was joing to isk you if you joined any kind of vaterans orzanizations here on
campus.

13 a matter of fact I was instrument:l in helping reactivate in 1967, There
wa3 n veterans orzanization here held over from Korea but it wis inactive,
I was an instrument in helning to rasctivate it,
J you belong to iny loesl orzanizations here?
I belong to the imerican Legzion.
Do you think it was a pretby good cholce cominz to school here?

Coming to school hers us opoosed to somewhers elsa you mean?
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J. . lell, T don't know whether you thought you hid i choice.

\ns, i2ll, T felt at first that T didn't have a choice for underzr:duate school.
I didn't think T had a choice because I'd dropped out of highachool. e
had an open admissions policy here for people over twenty—one,

Jode Do you think the quzlity of the education. . . Do you think it was educzition
thit really preparad you for zetting buck into civilian life and zetting .
Job ind 2 career?

ns. Yes, I think so, T think though that T don't really have anything to compure
to except people I've talked to, and T've zot friends that went to school zat
Zastern, Jestern, ind T feel that, well, T've defenitly zot friends here thit
graduated from hers, only been in the library once or twice, and T don't know
how they did it, but T know T had to practicelly live in the library, and T
wondered 1f this wis because of my lick of prepration for college or what.

JJH., T ilso hud in mind the quality of education that you recieved, were you satisfiad
with it? :

ins. T think so. TI'm mot totally satisfied with the perception of the acidemic
© world as zetting you ready for a job, but T think — T step on tees when T
say T don't think it mikes any difference where 2 person gets his dezrse J
from, I think it's the individual that makes the diffarence, ind T think it
doesn't make any differsnca if 4 person i3 a straighi A\ student it depends on
vwhere he's starting st.

Jo.H., 1\ couple of other questions T wanted to isk you Zliude., 2Jid you write any
letters that you saved that might be of any help to us in Understanding your
experiences that you'd be willing to share?

Ans, T think maybe, I'll check. T've 20t a1 sister who I wrote to more than asnyhedy
else she'd possibly hive some. T don't personilly.

J.d. Historians ire looking for documents as well i3 what we have on tape. Jo you
have any pictures or memento's of your time In Vietn.m that you'wve szsved
angd cherish, things that kind of remind ué of those days?

in3, .ell, here azlan it's sort of ironic, T don't know how to say how T feel about
ite The unit T was in you weren't allowed to have cameras., T know a lot of
people in Vietnam, i1 lot of ground combat that hid cameris, but when T was
thers, first of 211 you couldn't carry it, you either had to carry a camer:
or something to eat. You know a lot of cameras went by the wayside. 1And
then it was made 2 policy that there would be no cameras,

Jee 30 you don't hive any pictures?
ins. No, maybs thare's one ol cture.

Jeds  How about other mementos of your time over thare, inything at 211 that you
hrought buck with you?

In3. Thinzs that ire personal to you. T hid 1 palr of — this i3 comicesl really —
when we first went over there was no such thing a3 s cimoflouge tee-shirts or
underwear. 30 w2'd been over there T zuess about 3ix months, not thit long,
and aomehody came up with this brizht idea that we camoflouge our undsrzlothes,

tee-shirts and shorts, so T have two or three piirs of shorts that we dyed in
coffee., Tt worked.

Jede U» until that time they were white, 13 that 12
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Yes,

Je didn't wear them, for the simple reason we weren't zoing to piy, have to
go dowvn and puy for camoflouge underwsar, so we naver wore theme. ‘nd most
usually the old type would mot right off of you, 30 we never wors underweir,

T was thinking seriously about il T could zet enough of the wir mementos tozzther
to try to sstablish 2 little muesum here in the library. Kind of : zechives

of miterial of men, brought Baick From Vietnam., This 13 what T had in mind

when I usked you this question.

T've zot a hat thut T wors when T was on gun patrol,

Then you will tzke a look and see 1f iny lebters are availible and 3iva ua
copizs? T want to establish a plaque for our alumni who served in Vietnum,
dould you be in fuvor of it?

Mot iP you have to force somebody to do it., Tt would appeal to me if the
Teteruns themselves didn't have to do it.,






